

# WELCOME

Congratulations on purchasing the AVA-88. The AVA-88 integrates multiple complicated control, automation and internet protocols into one simple plug-and-play device. It is a central controller that integrated and control of all wireless Z-wave devices used for home automation and keeps connect and control of your home easily, no matter where you are. Please take a few minutes to read this guide to set up your AVA-88 and Z-wave network smoothly.



Manual version V1.00 06-01-2015 Avadesign Technology Co. Ltd. 4F.-10, No.351, Sec. 2, Zhongshan Rd., Zhonghe Dist., New Taipei City 23504, Taiwan R.O.C. www.avadesign.com.tw

# **Table of Contents**

Chapter 1 Introduction 4
1.1 Key Features
1.2.Technical Specifications
1.3.Hardware Overview    5
1.3.1 Front Panel
1.3.2 Back Panel
Chapter 2 Quick Install.
2.1 Unpacking
2.2 The Procedure of Connection
2.3 Find the IP address of your AVA-88
2.4 Setup Wi-Fi for your AVA-88
2.4.1 System
2.4.2 Network
2.4.2.1 General Setup
2.4.2.2 Advanced Settings
2.4.2.3 Physical Settings
2.4.2.4 Firewall Settingsb
2.4.3 Zwave
2.4.4 Logout
2.5 Initial setup procedure for AVA-88 web configuration
Chapter 3 Full web configurations
3.1 Enter web configure page
3.2 SetZwave – Z-Wave device settings
3.2.1 The Z-Wave device configuration
3.2.1.1 Add a Z-Wave device
3.2.1.2 Remove a Z-Wave device
3.2.2 Z-Wave Control and Log
3.2.3 Topology
3.2.4 Door Lock Security
3.2.5 Version Information
3.3 Room Setting
3.3.1 Create Room

3.3.2 All Rooms
3.4 Device Setting
3.5 Scene Setting
3.5.1 Create Scene
3.5.2 All Scenes
3.6 Trigger – Monitor the Z-Wave Devices
3.6.1 Create Trigger
3.7 Schedule – Arrangement for Z-Wave Devices on Schedule
3.7.1 Create Schedule
3.8 Report
3.9 Camera
3.9.1 Camera Setting
3.9.2 Camera View
3.10 Help

# **Chapter 1 Introduction**

**AVA-88** is a central controller that integrated and control of all wireless Z-wave devices used for home automation. It also provides Gateway to connect to Internet. Through Internet you can see all kinds of devices status of your home at any time and any place via your smartphone or PC. You can control the home devices such as lighting, air conditioning, door lock and unlock, you can also receive the alarm message of your home. Energy usage monitors of your home at any time is real-time recording to the cloud host, home alarm messages are immediately delivered to the cloud message monitoring center for the necessary treatment.

The AVA-88 controls switches, dimmers, motion sensors, temperature sensors and so on many Z-Wave devices. AVA-88 integrates complicated control, automation and internet protocols into one simple plug-and-play device. It provides an interface that allows you to manage your home easily, whether you are at home or not.

#### 1.1 Key Features

- Provide one LAN port Router function
- Provide one USB 2.0 Host port, you can connect Zigbee USB Dongle or USB Hard Disk
- Provide WiFi IEEE 802.11b/g/n
- Provide compatible Z-Wave Plus communication protocol that connects all kinds of Z-Wave devices that includes window sensors, electric locks, lighting dimmer controls, energy usage monitor, air quality detector, temperature and humidity sensors, fire safety sensors.
- Provide a service platform to connect to the cloud service.
- Provide IP-Cam viewing interface
- Provide free download APP.

#### **1.2 Technical Specifications**

	Technical Specifications
Hardware Specificat	tions
USB Port	USB Host 2.0 x1
Ethernet port	RJ-45 10/100Mb , support 1 LAN
Physical and Enviro	onmental Characteristics
Dimensions	137(W) x 101(H) x 30(D) mm
Weight	300g
Operating Temp.	■ Temp: 0°C~45°C (32°F~113°F)

& Humidity	Humidity: 10% ~ 90% relative humidity, non-condensing
Power Adapter	■ INPUT: AC100V~240V, 50/60Hz
Power Adaptor	OUTPUT: DC 5V, 2.0A
outer casing	Plastic
Country of origin	Made in Taiwan
Software Specificati	ions
Protocol	Z-Wave
WiFi	IEEE 802.11b/g/n
HA Functions	Sense Control
	Lighting Control
	Door Lock Control
	Sensor Trigger Even
	Schedule setting
	Support mobile phone Push Notification
	Support Devices Place Location
	User account Management (admin and normal user)
	Support Remote update software
Z-Wave Capacity	Support 30 Z-Wave notes

# 1.3 Hardware Overview

#### 1.3.1 Front Panel



#### 1.3.2 Back Panel



DC 5V/2A: Connecting to AC adapter. Input AC 100V~240V, 50/60Hz; Output DC 5V 2.0A

- LAN: RJ-45 socket, complied with Ethernet 10/100base-T.
- **USB:** USB 2.0 ports, USB Type A.

# Chapter 2 Quick Install

After you've created your Z-Wave network, you'll need to install your AVA-88. Follow these steps:

# 2.1 Unpacking

Open the carton and unpack the items. Your package should include:

AVA-88 main unit x 1 pcs

If items are missing or damaged, notify your Avadesign representative. Keep the carton and packing material.

# 2.2 The Procedure of Connection

Step 1: Plug in DC power adapter to AVA-88.

Step 2: Connect the Ethernet cable to your AVA-88 LAN port.



Step 3: Plug in AC power cord to power source.

Step 4: AVA-88 begins the boot process automatically.

AVA-88 provides three kinds of operational platforms, Web page, Android and iOS, for users. Therefore user can configure the AVA-88 by his/her PC or smart phone or tablet. The web configuration guide is available in this manual. The installation guide for smart phone/tablet with Android system or iOS system, please refer to other document.

# 2.3 Find the IP address of your AVA-88

Please download the Java program file named avaControlFinderJava from the website of Avadesign Co., Ltd. http://www.avadesign.com.tw/support/support.html to your PC. Decompress the file and click it twice by left button of your mouse. Then you will see the IP address listing of all of your AVA-88 as below.



#### avaControl Finder

### 2.4 Setup Wi-Fi for your AVA-88 (optional)

If you want to use Wi-Fi, please following the setup procedure described as below.

Step 1: At first, connect Ethernet cable to LAN port of AVA-88.

Step 2: Type the IP address which getting from avaControl Finder as Sec. 2.3. For example: type 192.168.1.8 of the AVA-88 in the address bar and press Enter. The screen is shown as follows.



The username is root. Please input password: <u>1234</u> then click "Login" button on the screen. After login AVA-88, you will see the login page as shown below.

- Step 3: Click on **Network** function in the top menu to setup your Wi-Fi network. The detailed is described at Sec. 2.4.2.
- Step 4: When Wi-Fi network configure has finished, please take off the Ethernet cable from LAN port of AVA-88.

<b>0 1 0</b>	
← → C 🗋 192.168.1.8/cgi-bin/luci/;stok=808edd8253b49d03e915630772b77161/admin/system/flashops	☆ 🔳
avaControl System - Network Zwave Logout	^ _
Flash open     Firmware       Actions     Con	
Backup / Restore Click "Generate archive" to download a tar archive of the current configuration files. To reset the firmware to its initial state, click "Perform reset" (only possible with squashfs images). Download backup: Generate archive	
To restore configuration files, you can upload a previously generated backup archive here.	
Restore backup: <b>選擇檔案</b> 未提擇任何檔案 III Upload archive	
Flash new firmware image Upload a sysupgrade-compatible image here to replace the running firmware. Check "Keep settings" to retain the current configuration (requires an OpenWrt compatible firmware image). Keep settings:	
Image: <b>選擇檔案</b> 未選擇任何檔案 III Flash image	

After Login user will see the screen as above, and there are four main categories in the top menu, user can click on each category to extend detail items.

- System
- Network
- Zwave
- Logout

The various configuration menus are explained below. You can select various function listed in the first line of web page display.

#### 2.4.1 System

You can backup or flash firmware in this function. This function also provides reboot the system for you.

#### Backup / Restore

You can click on "Generate archive" button on the screen to download a tar archive of the current configuration files.

To restore configuration files, you also can upload a previously generated backup archive here.

#### Flash new firmware image

You can upload a sys upgrade-compatible image here to replace the running firmware.

#### **Backup/Flash Firmware**

← → C 🗋 192.168.	1.8/cgi-bin/luci/:stok=808edd8253b49d03e915630772b77161/admin/system/flashops	¶☆ ≡
應用程式 🧰 書籤		
	avaControl System - Network Zwave Logout	
	Flash operations	
	Actions Configuration	
	Backup / Restore	
	Click "Generate archive" to download a tar archive of the current configuration files. To reset the firmware to its initial state, click "Perform reset" (only possible with squashfs images).	
	Download backup: 🔲 Generate archive	
	To restore configuration files, you can upload a previously generated backup archive here.	
	Restore backup: 道環檔案 未退擇任何檔案 Deload archive	
	Flash new firmware image	
	Upload a sysupgrade-compatible image here to replace the running firmware. Check "Keep settings" to retain the current configuration (requires an OpenWrt compatible firmware image).	
	Keep settings:	
	Image: 道擇檔案 未選擇任何檔案 II Flash image	

#### 2.4.2 Network

The network function provides Wi-Fi network configuration for users.

	Network pag	је	
	d8253b49d03e915630772b77161/admin/network	<	☆ 〓
III 商用程式 🗅 書助 avaControl System ~	Network Zwave Logout	AUTO REFRESH ON	^
Wired			- 1
LAN			
Network	Status	Actions	- 1
LAN 3년 (교교 3) br-lan	Uptime: 2h 26m 5s MAC-Address: 00.3C: 14:16:B0:3B RX: 8:10 MB (74918 Pkts.) TX: 13:23 MB (18854 Pkts.) IPv4: 192.168.1.8/16	Edit	
Global network options	3		
IPv6 ULA-Prefix	fd40:d601:fc3b::/48		
		Save & Apply Save Reset	

Click on "Edit" button, you can do general setup, or advanced settings, or physical settings and Firewall settings.

#### 2.4.2.1 General Setup

#### **General Setup**

← → C 🗋 192.168.1.8	/cgi-bin/luci/;st	stok=808edd8253b49d03e915630772b77161/admin/network/network/lan	☆ 〓
👖 應用程式 🧀 書鏡			
	avaControl	System - Network Zwave Logout AUTO REFRESH ON	^ 
	Wired - LA	AN	_
	Common Con	onfiguration	
	General Setup	Advanced Settings Physical Settings Firewall Settings	
	Hostname to reques	Status     Ø/3     Uptime: 2h 27m 16s br-ian       br-ian     MAC-Address: 00:3C;14:16:B0:3B RX: 8:19 MB (75824 Pkts.) TX: 13:30 MB (19164 Pkts.) IPv4: 192.168.1.8/16       Protocol     DHCP client       esting DHCP	
		Save & Apply Save Reset	

You can select which protocol you need. AVA-88 provides a protocol listing of static address, DHCP client, unmanaged, PPP, PPtP, PPPoE, PPPoATM, UMTS/GPRS/EV-DO and L2TP for your choice.

#### 2.4.2.2 Advanced Settings

You can do advanced configuration by clicking on "Advanced Settings" function.

← → C 192.168.1.8/cgi-bin/luci/;stok=80	8edd8253b49d03e915630772b77161/admin/network/network/lan	ය [=
🧱 應用程式 🦳 書鏡		
avaControl System	n ≁ Network Zwave Logout	AUTO REFRESH ON
Wired - LAN		
Common Configura	tion	
General Setup Adva	Acced Settings Physical Settings Firewall Settings	
Bring up on b	bot 🕑	
Use broadcast f	ag 🔲 🍘 Required for certain ISPs, e.g. Charter with DOCSIS 3	
Use default gatew	ay 🕜 🍘 If unchecked, no default route is configured	
Use DNS servers advertis by pr		
Use gateway met	ric 0	
Client ID to send wh requesting DH		
Vendor Class to send wh requesting DH		
Override MAC addre	ss 00:3C:14:16:B0:3B	
Override M	TU 1500	
	Sav	e & Apply Save Reset

#### **Advanced Settings**

#### 2.4.2.3 Physical Settings

You can create a bridge over specified interface and enables the Spanning Tree Protocol on this bridge. You also can select which interface you needed by clicking the check squares.

				Phy	sical Settin	gs			
← → C □ 192.168.1.3 … 應用程式 □ 書籤	8/cgi-bin/luci/;s	tok=808ed	d8253b4	9d03e915630772b	o77161/admin/network/	network/lan			☆ 〓
	avaControl	System <del>-</del>	Network	Zwave Logout			A	UTO REFRESH ON	^
	Wired - LA	AN							
	Common Co	nfiguratio	n						
	General Setup	Advanced	Settings	Physical Settings	Firewall Settings				
	Bridg	je interfaces	🗹 🍘 cre	eates a bridge over spec	cified interface(s)				
		Enable STP	🔲 👔 Er	nables the Spanning Tre	ee Protocol on this bridge				
		Interface		themet Adapter. "@wai themet Adapter. "eth0" /LAN Interface: "eth0.1" Ethemet Adapter. "eth1" Vireless Network: Client Lustom Interface:	(lan)	1			
						l	Save & Apply Save	e Reset	

#### 2.4.2.4 Firewall Settings

Choose the firewall zone you want to assign to this interface by clicking on "Firewall Settings" function. Select "*unspecified*" to remove the interface from the associated zone or fill out "*create*" field to define a new zone and attach the interface to it.

avaControl System - Ne	twork Zwave Logout	AUTO REFRESH ON
Wired - LAN		
Common Configuration		
General Setup Advanced Set	ings Physical Settings Firewall Settings	
Create / Assign firewall-zone	lan: [lan: ] ] @	
0	wan: wan: 🚂 🙊 wan6: 🚂 wwan: 🌚	
0	unspecified -or- create:	
	Choose the firewall zone you want to assign to this interface. Se ociated zone or fill out the <i>create</i> field to define a new zone and	
	Choose the firewall zone you want to assign to this interface. Se	

#### **Firewall Settings**

#### 2.4.3 Zwave

You also can do Z-Wave devices setup by clicking on "Zwave" function. Please refer to Chapter 3 for the detailed description.



#### ZWave home page

#### 2.4.4 Logout

You can log out the system by clicking on "Logout" function.

# 2.5 Initial setup procedure for AVA-88 web configuration

In order to set proper functions for each Z-Wave device, you can follow this flow chart before you start to configure Z-Wave devices for AVA-88.



SetZwave Please refer to section 3.2 Room Please refer to section 3.3

**Function Name** 

in the top menu

Scene Please refer to section 3.5

**Trigger** Please refer to section 3.6

**Schedule** Please refer to section 3.7

**Report** Please refer to section 3.8

# **Chapter 3 Full web configurations**

# 3.1 Enter web configure page

Move the cursor to the IP address of AVA-88 on the screen and click it that as shown the diagram of avaControl Finder at section 2.3. Then you will enter the web page for



Please input with username: <u>admin</u> and password: <u>admin</u> then click "Login" button on the screen. After login AVA-88, you will see the home page as shown below.



At right side of home page, you can see the national flag of different country for different language selection. Just click the national flag you will get which language you want. You also can see the orange color button with characters of update. Click "Update" button to update your configuration software. Finished the update procedure, you will see the screen as shown below. A message of "This is the newest version" displays on the screen now.

#### **Update procedure**

調雇式 🗋 書飯 ome Automat		କ					There is new version. Updat Controller ID: 003C1416B0
			or manage yo you want to u	pdate the ZW/	AVE System?		

Please click on "OK" button to update the AVA-88 software.

**Home Page** 

<ul> <li>          ・         ・         ・</li></ul>									¶ ☆] <b>=</b>
Home Automation	AAD								This is the newest version Controller ID: 003C1416B03B
Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help



After Login AVA-88 user will see screen as above, and there are ten main categories, user can click on each category to extend detail items.

- Home
- Room
- Device
- Camera
- Scene
- Trigger
- Schedule
- SetZwave
- Report

Help

The various configuration menus are explained below. You can select various function listed in the first line of Home page display.

## 3.2 SetZwave - Z-Wave device settings

One of main functions of AVA-88 is control and monitoring the room. If you would like to implementation of these efforts require the help of Z-Wave devices in order to complete the task. At first, you need to add the new Z-Wave devices to AVA-88 for control and monitoring the room or remove the Z-wave device which not used.

#### 3.2.1 The Z-Wave device configuration

#### 3.2.1.1 Add a Z-Wave device

You can add the Z-Wave device by clicking on the category of "SetZwave" in the menu bar. The procedure of adding the Z-wave device is described as follows.



Step 1: Enter the "SetZwave" page and select "Device Configuration"

Step 2: Click on the "Include New Device", the screen will appear "Add Device: Waiting for a user action."

← → C □ 192.168.1.	8:5000									<b>무</b> 숬 <b>=</b>
應用程式 🧀 書籤										
Home Automat	ion			user act 下午3:26 removed	:29 Remove De ion. :32 Remove De successfully.	vice: Waiting vice: Device N e: Waiting for	0.92 is			This is the newest version Controller ID: 003C1416B03B
	Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help
SetZwave	Device of	configuration	n							
ZwaveControl & Lo	g				Cancel	Exclu	de Device	Cancel Operation	n	
သို့င်္နီလ Topolog	У						No.			
Device Configuratio	n									
Door Lock Securit	у				Add	Device: Wait	ing for a user	action.		
Version Informatio					· · · · · ·			•••••		

Step 3: Press the programming switch button on the Z-Wave device for connection. The location of programming switch button depends on the type of Z-Wave device that you use. Please refer to the user manual of the Z-Wave device.

Step 3: Press the programm	ning switch button on th	ne Z-wave device.	
	Include New Device	Exclude Device	Cancel Operation
	The Z-way	ve device was added	successfully.
		¥	
		Find New Device	
Plug-in on/off module		·	

- p.s. You also can buy these Z-Wave devices such as Plug-in on/off module, Door sensor, PIR sensor, Wireless siren...etc. from Avadesign Technology.
- Step 4: When your Z-Wave device has added successfully, the message of "Add Device: Command has completed successfully" will display on the screen.
- Step 5: When the new Z-Wave device was found, you can modify the name and room settings as shown below.

Find I	Vew Device
Device Type:	HA-05C Lamp Screw In M
4	Choose room name
	OFF
Reset	Save

Step 6: Then click "device", the new Z-wave device is ready to use now.



#### 3.2.1.2 Remove a Z-Wave device

You also can remove the Z-Wave device by clicking on the category of "SetZwave" in the menu bar. The procedure of removing the Z-wave device is described as follows.

Step 1: Enter the "SetZwave" page and select "Device Configuration"



Step 2: Click on the "Exclude Device", the screen will appear "Remove Device: Waiting for a user action."

← → C 🗋 192.168.1.8	:5000									F 🔂 🗄
🦉 應用程式 🧰 書籤										
Home Automat	ion	100	GN		54:37 Update p		<b>^</b>			<b></b>
Z-Wave Controller			iken.	上午10:5	4:43 Checking 4:43 Update s	uccess.				This is the newest version
			5		4:43 Waiting 2:35 Add Devi		r a user			Controller ID: 003C1416B038
	Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help
SetZwave	Device	configuration	١							
ZwaveControl & Log	3					ice C	ancel	Cancel Operation	n	
Topology	/						ster.			
Device Configuration						•	514 515			
					-					
Door Lock Security	/				Remo	ve Devíce: Wa	aiting for a use	er action.		

Step 3: Press the programming switch button on the Z-Wave device for removing. The location of programming switch button depends on the type of Z-Wave device that you use. Please refer to the user manual of the Z-Wave device.



Step 4: When your Z-Wave device has removed successfully, the message of "Remove Device: Command has completed successfully" will display on the screen.

### 3.2.2 Z-Wave Control and Log

AVA-88 provides alarm records of all Z-Wave control devices for user as follows.

應用	) C 🗋 192.168.1.8 現式 🗀 書籤	8:5000										P 😒
		ion	AA Treat	DECON		accion. 下午2:25:51 Add Device: cancelled. 下午3:26:29 Remove Devi		or a				This is the newest version
	ter alle	222				user action. 下午3:26:32 Remove Devi	-	-				This is the newest version
				5		r+3:26:32 Remove Devi	ice: Device No	.92 15				Controller ID: 003C1416B038
		Home	Room	Device	Ca	mera Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZ	wave F	Report I	Help
	0-17											
	SetZwave	Logs										
	ZwaveControl & Log	g					Varm Update	୯	1/5			
00	Topology	у	Time		Node ID	Node Name	Eve		Alarm Type	Alarm Level	Notify Type	e Notify Event
)	Device Configuration	n Wed	Dec 10 07:08 2014	:32 GMT	2	Wireless Door/Win Sensor	dow A	larm	0x0	0x0	Home Security	Intrusion, Unknown Location
	Door Lock Security	y Wed	Dec 10 02:06 2014	:26 GMT	2	Wireless Door/Win Sensor	dow A	larm	0x7	0xff	Home Security	Intrusion, Unknown Location
	Version Information	n	Dec 10 02:04 2014		2	Wireless Door/Win Sensor	А	larm	0x7	0xff	Home Security	Intrusion, Unknown Location
			Dec 10 02:02 2014		2	Wireless Door/Win Sensor	A	larm	0x7	0xff	Home Security	Intrusion, Unknown Location
			Dec 10 02:01 2014		2	Wireless Door/Win Sensor	A	larm	0x7	0xff	Home Security	Intrusion, Unknown Location
			Dec 10 02:01 2014		2	Wireless Door/Win Sensor	A	larm	0x7	0xff	Home Security	Intrusion, Unknown Location
			Dec 10 01:51 2014		2	Wireless Door/Win Sensor	A	larm	0x7	0xff	Home Security	Intrusion, Unknown Location
			Dec 10 01:38 2014		2	Wireless Door/Win Sensor	А	larm	0x7	0xff	Home Security	Intrusion, Unknown Location
		Wed	Dec 10 01:37 2014	:49 GMT	2	Wireless Door/Win Sensor	А	larm	0x7	0xff	Home Security	Intrusion, Unknown Location
			c 9 10:09:03	GMT 2014	2	Wireless Door/Win	dow A	larm	0x7	0xff	Home	Intrusion, Unknown

SetZwave – ZwaveControl & Log

When you click on "Update" button, you will see the listing of software version updated. Clicking on the "Version" button at the end of screen, the system will check the software version of AVA-88 for you automatically.

← → C 192.168.1.8 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::		AADE		上午10:54 上午10:54 上午11:22 action.	4:43 Update so 4:43 Waiting 2:35 Add Devio		-				〒☆ = ■ ■ ■ ■ is the newest version er ID: 003C1416B03B
	Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help	
SetZwave	Logs				(	Alarm	• ?	1/2			
Contraction Topology	/		Tim	1e					Version		
Device Configuration	1	Tu	e Dec 9 03:55	5:17 GMT 2014	1			sw-win32-0	.3.6.7-config	1.39-20141208	
Door Lock Security	/	Thu	I Nov 20 10:5	4:41 GMT 201	4			sw-win32-0	.3.6.4-config	1.38-20141120	
Version Information	1			4:49 GMT 201					-	-1.37-20141117 -1.37-20141117	
				1:15 GMT 2014					-	1.35-20141117	
				4:22 GMT 201					-	1.35-20141016	
		Tue	e Oct 14 02:50	0:46 GMT 201	4				Ŭ	1.34-20141013	
		Tue	e Sep 30 03:2	9:50 GMT 201	4			sw-win32-0	.3.5.3-config	1.31-20140926	
		Wed	d Sep 24 12:2	3:29 GMT 201	4			sw-win32-0	.3.5.1-config	1.31-20140924	
	ZWAVE	Reset	Version		-	ersion"					
		T T		to c	check th	ne versi	on.		Yo	<mark>u can clic</mark>	k the
You also o	can clic	ck the "	reset"	]		Û				odate" bu	itton to ne newest
button to r	reset th	ne syste	em.	Version	There i	s new ve	rsion.	Ipdate 🗲		rsion for u	

You also can click the "reset" button to reset the system shown as above diagram. Then you can click on "OK" button to reset the system or "Cancel" button to quit the reset process.



#### 3.2.3 Topology

The topology diagram shows the connection relationship of AVA-88 and all of Z-wave devices. The small square at row 1 and column 1 represents the AVA-88. The small square at row 1 and column 2 represents a Z-Wave device. Applying the topology diagram, user can decide the control path of AVA-88 and each Z-Wave device. For example, the AVA-88 can control the remote device B indirectly by device A.

#### SetZwave - Topology



#### 3.2.4 Door Lock Security

You can select a door lock to add password or modify password.

			Se	tZwav	/e – Doo	or Loci	< Secur	ity			
← → C 🗋 192.168.1.8:	5000										¶☆ ≡
👖 應用程式 🗀 書籤											
Home Automati	on	AADE	GN	上午10	:54:43 Update su :54:43 Waiting f	uccess.	<b>^</b>				<b>E</b>
Z-Wave Controller			h0.	上午11 action	:22:35 Add Devic	e: Waiting for	a user			Thi	s is the newest version.
			5		:23:06 Add Devic	ce: Command was	s //			Control	ller ID: 003C1416B03B
	Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help	
SetZwave	Door Lo	ck Security									
ZwaveControl & Log					Dooi	r Lock: Select	a door lock to add	pas: 🔻			
ි දිං Topology						Select Wireles	a door lock to add s Electronic Dead	password bolt Door Lock			
Device Configuration							1				
Door Lock Security											
Version Information					Select	<mark>a door l</mark>	ock to a	<mark>dd or m</mark>	odify p	assword.	

Then you will see the listing of user name and password. Clicking on the pen icon to modify the password. You also can click on the **X** symbol to delete the password.

應用程式 🗅 書載 Home Automation	AADE		上午10:5	4:43 Update su 4:43 Waiting f						<b>•</b>
-Wave Controller		ha.			ce: Waiting fo	r a user			This	is the newest version
		5		3:06 Add Devid	ce: Command wa	s //			Controll	er ID: 003C1416B038
Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help	
Home	Room	Device	Gamera	ocenie			004211410	Report		
		Device	Gamera	ocene	mggor		GGALMANO	Report		
SetZwave Door	Lock Security	Device	Gamera	ocene	119901			Report		
SetZwave Door		Device	Guinera			ss Electronic Dead		Report		·····
SetZwave Door		Device	Sumera							Logs
SetZwave Door			Cunicia			ss Electronic Deac				Logs
SetZwave Door ZwaveControl & Log Topology	Lock Security	_				ss Electronic Deac	ibolt 🔻			Logs

You can click on the "Add" button to add new password as below. The maximum length of password is 10 digits and you can input numeric  $0 \sim 9$ .

- → C 🗋 192.168.1.	.8:5000									¶ ੯	3 =
🚦 應用程式 🗀 書籤											
Home Automa Z-Wave Controller	tion			cancelle 上午11:5 action.	3:06 Add Devic d. 0:08 Add Devic 0:39 Add Devic	e: Waiting fo	r a user			This is the newest v	
	499		5	L+11;5		e: commaria wa	<b>&gt;</b> //			Controller ID: 003C1416	303B
	Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help	
SetZwave	Door Lo	ock Security									
ZwaveControl & Lo	og				Pa	assword		_			
Topolog	gу						Max numbers	: 10			
Device Configuration	on						OK Can	cel			
Bevice Configuration											
Door Lock Securi	ity										

You can click on the "Log" button to get the door lock records as below. The maximum number of logs is 5. Please input the record number that equal or less than 5 then click on "Search" button.

← → C 🗋 192.168.1.	.8:5000										¶☆∎
👯 應用程式 🧀 書籤											
Home Automat	tion	AADE		cancelle 上午11:50 action.	3:06 Add Devic d. 3:08 Add Devic 3:39 Add Devic	e: Waiting fo	rauser			This is the	newest version
	- YYY			,			1				003C1416B03B
	Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help	
SetZwave		ck Security									
ZwaveControl & Lo	g				Input:	Rec	ord Search	(Max:0)			
Topolog	лу										Time
Device Configuratio	on										Carrel
Device Configuratio											Cancel

The "Time" button on the right side of screen is used for time setting by manually. You have to input the right date and time by yourself. When you replace the battery of Electric Deadbolt, please remember to modify the date and time here.

→ C 192.168.1.8	\$:5000									¶☆ ≡
: 信用程式 ロ 書紙 Home Automat Z-Wave Controller	tion	AADI		下午4:56 下午4:56 下午4:56	:14 Update pro :36 Checking r :36 Update suc :36 Waiting fo	cess start. ew firmware. cess.	* *			This is the newest version Controller ID: 003C1416B03B
	Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help
SetZwave	Door Lo	ock Security								
ZwaveControl & Log	g				Day	and Time: 2014	4/12/9 16:5:17			
ZwaveControl & Log	-				Day	and Time: 2014		ancel		
Configuration	У				Day	and Time: 2014		Cancel		
, Koronog	ly n				Day	and Time:2014		ancel		

#### 3.2.5 Version Information

Clicking on "Version Information" item, you will get the information of software version.

<ul> <li>← → C □ 192.168.</li> <li>Ⅲ 應用程式 □ 書籤</li> </ul>	. <b>1.8</b> :5000										☆ =
Home Automa Z-Wave Controller	ation	A ADE		下午3:45: command. 下午3:45: cancelled	54 Add Device	: Starting con	troller			This is the newer Controller ID: 003C1	st version
	Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help	
SetZwave	Version	n Information									
ZwaveControl &	Log			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·							
				Version			Device Conf	iguration		Date	
Topol	ogy	Gateway		0.2.0.3			Device Conf 1.29			Date 20140815	
Device Configurat		Gateway Web									
0	tion			0.2.0.3			1.29			20140815	

#### SetZwave – Version Information

# 3.3 Room setting

AVA-88 can classify and integrate all kinds of Z-Wave devices to do home automation includes room, scene, trigger, schedule and report.

#### 3.3.1 Create room

#### Create rooms to distribute Z-Wave devices

According to the different room in the family, you can distribute the Z-Wave devices to each room. And you can learn which room was invaded or controlled household appliances quickly.

Now, you can create a new room by clicking on "Create Room" item. Then input the room name and click on "Add" button.



#### Room – Create Room

You also can change the icon of the room by clicking on "Change ICON" button. Then you will see some pictures that you can choose for the proper room as below screen.

<ul> <li>← → C □ 192.168.1.8</li> <li>Ⅲ 應用程式 □ 書前</li> <li>Home Automat</li> <li>Z-Wave Controller</li> </ul>		A ADI									₽
	Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help	
Room All Room tes Create Roor	st	icture to choo		Bathr - Kitch Study				Bedro Living ro or Meeting	oom		Dining room
											Cancel

If you change icon and input "meeting room" in the field of room name, and click on "Add" button.



Then you will see the meeting room appear on the left side of screen.



#### 3.3.2 All rooms

You can see the device status in each room easily by clicking on "All rooms" item.

₩ 應用程詞	e Automa		AA	DEAGN	下午3:50 OK.	30 Has Node I	Failed: Device	No.89 is				₽ 🏠 s is the newest version. Ier ID: 003C1416803B	*
		Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help		
	Room All Roor te hallw Meeting roo <u>Create Roo</u>	ns est ay om	Room /ireless Door/Wi Sensor	indow Senso	r Undefined Undefi	ned		n, Unknown cation	Mode	•			
		M	Vireless Electron	nic Deadbolt Isecure ▼	Door Lock(Rea		Bolt statu	15	Latch st		<b>₽</b>		•

### 3.4 Device setting

You can place the Z-wave device in the right room by selecting device function in the top menu and choosing a device which you want.

- For example, you create a meeting room at section 3.3, and you would like to place light device in this room. The setting procedure is described as following:
  - Step 1: Select "Device" function and clicking on "All Devices" item to show all of the Z-Wave devices on the screen.
  - Step 2: Choose the device that you need and click on the icon of pen to edit the content of device. For example, you place light device in this room.

Please refer to the following screen.



**Device – All Devices** 

Step 3: Edit the content of light device. Please input the device name and room name. Then click on "Save" button to save the configuration. You also can check this node by clicking on "Check and Remove" button and the message of "The node is OK" displays on the screen.

← → C □ 192.168.1.8 Ⅲ 應用程式 □ 書籤	<b>3</b> :5000										¶☆ ≡
Home Automat	ion	HADE		下午3:50: OK.	30 Has Node F	ailed: Device	No.89 is				is is the newest version.
	Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help	
Device	Modify	Device									
All Device	<u>s</u>				Product	Name: HA-05	C Lamp Screw	in Module			
Switc	h				Device	Name: Light Name: Meetin					
Senso	or						SwitchBinary I				
Mete	er					N.M	SwitchDinary	CON			
Thermosta	at					Y	Change ICON				
Other	s				-						
		Check	and Remove	The node is (	ЭК.					Save	Cancel

Step 4: Go back to "Room" function and click on "Meeting room" item, then you will see the light device

Hom -Wave Co	e Automati	ion			下午3:50: OK.	30 Has Node F	ailed: Device	No.89 is			This is the newest versi Controller ID: 003C1416B0
		Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help
	Room	Meeting	g room								×
	<u>All Rooms</u> test	Light		Ø							
	hallway		vitch	On							
	Meeting room			Off							
	Create Room	E									

Room – Meeting room

Now, you can place another device to other room continuously. For example, you want to place electronic deadbolt in hallway. Please refer to the following screens.



Then you will find the electronic deadbolt in hallway now.

ıllway Electrical Deadbolt			Ĩ
Mode Unsecure V	Door status	Bolt status	Latch status
			<b>₹</b> 94

# 3.5 Scene Setting - Control Z-Wave devices

You can control and combine a number of Z-Wave devices together and execute a designed operation action by clicking one key only.

#### 3.5.1 Create Scene

Step 1: Select "Scene" function in the top menu on the screen. Then click on "Create Scene" item. Please input the scene name and click on "Add" button.

← → C □ 192.168.1.8	:5000									F 🕁 📒
🏥 應用程式 🧀 書籤										
Home Automat	ion	AADE		ок.	:30 Has Node F					
Z-Wave Controller			A.D.	下午4:19 OK.	:28 Has Node F	ailed: Device	No.3 is			This is the newest version.
			5							Controller ID: 003C1416B03B
	Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help
					******					
Scene	Create	Scene								
All Scenes	<u>.</u>									
Open Corner Ligh	t				2	cene Name:	urn on the light for			
Open porch light and alarm								Add		
Close porch light and alarm										
Close Corner Ligh	t									
door oper	<b>.</b>									
<u>Create Scene</u>										

Scene – Create Scene

Step 2: Now, you can see the scene was created and named as "Turn on the light for meeting room". You also can edit the scene name by clicking on the icon of pen.

	ion	A ADE		ок.		Failed: Device Failed: Device					he newest vers D: 003C1416B
	Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help	
Scene	Turn on	the light for	meeting roon	n							
All Scenes	Scene	Name: Turn	on the light fo	or meeting roo	om 🧷						
Open Corner Light		olled Device			<b>A</b>					Select one dev	vice to add 🔻 🗖
Open porch light and alarm		ice in the sc	ene								
Close porch light and											
alarm Close Corner Light											
door open						You also	can ed	it the sc	ene		
Turn on the light for						name by	clicking	g on the	icon of		
meeting room						pen.					
Create Scene											
	Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trianas	Schedule	SetZwave		Help	
	Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	нер	
Scene	Turn on	the light for	meeting roor	n							
All Scenes	Scene	Name: Turn o	n the light for me	eti OK	Cancel						
Open Corner Light		rolled Device	-		Cancer					Select one de	

Then add controlled Z-Wave devices in this scenario that shown as below. For example: you add a switch of light in this scenario.



You can add more controlled Z-Wave devices in this scenario by selecting one device in the scrolling menu and clicking on the icon of plus sign on the screen. Then you will see a new controlled device display on the screen now.



You also can delete a controlled Z-Wave device in this scenario by clicking on the icon of "X". Then you will see this controlled device disappear on the screen now.

Step 3: Setting the proper action for each device. For example: you can turn on the light by clicking on "On" button. Then you will see the color of light has changed to bright yellow.

← → C □ 192.168.1.8 Ⅲ 應用程式 □ 書籤	:5000								ę	☆ 〓
Home Automati	ion	ADE ON	ок.		Failed: Device Failed: Device				This is the newest Controller ID: 003C14	
	Home Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help	
Scene	Turn on the light f	or meeting roo	m							×
<u>All Scenes</u> Open Corner Light Open porch light and alarm Close porch light and alarm Close Corner Light door open Turn on the light for meeting room	Controlled Devi	ces:	for meeting ro	om 🧷					Select one device to add	

Step 4: You can click on "Run" button of the scene that has set by yourself. The corresponding Z-Wave device will be used.



#### 3.5.2 All Scenes

You can see all of scenes by clicking on "All Scenes" item and select the scene that you want to execute.

明程式 🗋 書競 ome Automat ave Controller	ion	AADE OV	ок.	:30 Has Node Failed :28 Has Node Failed				This is the newest version
	Home Roc	om Device	Camera	Scene Tr	igger Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Controller ID: 003C1416B03 Help
Scene	Click buttons t	o run the scene:						
<u>All Scene</u> Open Corner Ligh Open porch light an	Open Corner	Run Open p		Close porch ligi	un Close Corner		or open	Turn on the light for meeting room

# 3.6 Trigger - Monitor the Z-Wave devices

#### 3.6.1 Create Trigger

The trigger function is used to monitor the setting of Z-wave devices, when an alarm is triggered to launch. Please refer to the following diagram for alarm setting.

← → C □ 192.168.1 應用程式 □ 書籤	8:5000										¶☆ ≡
Home Automat	tion	A ADE		ок.	:30 Has Node F :28 Has Node F						is is the newest version.
	Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help	
Trigger <u>Create Trigg</u> e	Create 1 tt	Trigger			Dev Mo Sce	ger warning ice: Wireless D de: Arm one: set alarm onal show	•	▼ Save			

#### Trigger – Create Trigger

You also can combine both of trigger and scene functions setting. For example: when people enter the meeting room, the light will be turn on automatically. Input the trigger situation and select a scene by clicking on the scrolling menu.



Then press the "Save" button. You will see the screen as below.



# 3.7 Schedule – Arrangement for Z-Wave devices on schedule

#### 3.7.1 Create Schedule

You can set up a schedule to monitor the security of your home regularly. For example: When nobody at home on Saturday set up to open the Z-Wave device automatically for monitoring. Please click the check square of every week and select the day and time from the scrolling bar. And select the scene that you wanted and input the name of schedule. Then click on "Save" button to save the configuration of schedule.

#### Schedule - Create Schedule

← → C ☐ 192.168.1.8 Ⅲ 應用程式 ☐ 書籤	:5000										¶☆ 〓
Home Automat	ion	H ADI		ок.		Failed: Device Failed: Device				This is the	newest version.
	Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help	
Schedule	Create	Schedule									
Energy Saving	9										
Create Schedule	<u>e</u>					Week Saturday Day Hour ▼		▼ 30 ▼			
					Delay						
					Scene: se	et alarm Name: alert on	▼ Saturdaul				
					ochedule		Gaturday	Save			

Now you will find a new schedule of "alert on Saturday" is created and displayed on the screen.



### 3.8 Report

You can get the power consumption of the Z-Wave device by using the report function. This function requires purchase the Smart Energy Switch device to monitor the amount of current. You can see how much power was used at which time period as shown below.

Step 1: At first, select a device and unit. Then input time period.

#### Report ← → C 192.168.1.8:5000 ¶☆ = 👖 應用程式 🧰 書籤 下午3:50:30 Has Node Failed: Device No.89 is **Home Automation** AADEOGN OK. 下午4:19:28 Has Node Failed: Device No.3 is This is the newest version. e ..... Controller ID: 003C1416B03B Home Room Device Camera Scene Trigger Schedule SetZwave Report Help **Report Search** Device Smart Energy Switch • Unit watt to 12/23/2014 Date 12/01/2014 Search . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Step 2: Click on "Search" button. Please waiting for few seconds, then the result is displayed on the screen.



Amount of electricity consumption

# 3.9 Camera

You can connect and control all of cameras in the house by the function of camera.

### 3.9.1 Camera Setting

You can add a camera by clicking on the icon of "+" or remove a camera by clicking on the icon of "X" or edit and modify the configuration of camera by clicking on the icon of pen as shown below.

Home Automation										P ☆ = This is the newest version.	
	Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Cont	troller ID: 003C1416B03B
Camera Camera Settir						Came	era List				1/1
Camera Vie	w		lame 122					lp 192.168.1.36	3		
							Add a	a camer	a —		<b>&gt;</b> (7)
		Edit and modify the configuration of camer									of camera
										Rer	nove a camera

#### Camera – Camera Setting

← → C 192.168.1.3	8:5000										¶☆ 〓	
🛄 應用程式 🧰 書籤												
Home Automa	tion	AAD	EGN	ок.		ailed: Device						
Z-Wave Controller				下午4:19 OK.	:28 Has Node F	ailed: Device	No.3 is			This is the newest version.		
							Controll	er ID: 003C1416B03B				
	Home	Room	Device	Camera	Scene	Trigger	Schedule	SetZwave	Report	Help		
Camera	Camera	Add										
Camera Settir	ng											
Camera Vie	w				c c	amera Name:						
						Camera lp: Camera port:						
						Camera Url:		-				
						Mjpg Url:						
						mera Account:						
					Cam	era Password:		Cancel				
					****	·		•••••	•••			

Add a Camera

Please input the camera name, IP address of camera, camera port, camera URL, MJPG URL, camera account and password. Then click on "OK" button to save the configuration.

You also can edit and modify the configuration of camera as shown below.

**Edit and Modify** 



#### 3.9.2 Camera View

You can view the real-time image by clicking on "Camera View" or the camera name.



# 3.10 Help

The function of help in the top menu on the screen will assist you to understand how to set up and use the AVA-88 by hyperlink to Avadesign company web page to download those documents that you need.

